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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901630

for

Delinquency Prevention Network (Programs)
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conferences held on May 8, 2018
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Questions

Q1) Will a copy of the bid conference PowerPoint presentation be made available to attendees?

A1) Bidders who would like a PDF copy of the PowerPoint presentation can submit a public records request via e-mail to:

Lovell Laurente, Procurement & Contracts Specialist

lovell.laurente@acgov.org
Q2) With only 19 days to respond, will the County consider any flexibility in the bid response due date?

A2) Please see Addendum No. 1 for the REVISED Calendar of Events.
Q3) Can the County confirm what the time period is for providing services? Is this a one year agreement or longer?

A3) As stated on page 2 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT), third paragraph:

The County intends to award a three-year contract to the most responsible bidder(s) whose response(s) conforms to the RFP and meet the County’s requirements. 

Q4) Are the funding amounts listed in Table 3 (page of the RFP) for one year?  Can the County confirm if the intended funding amounts to be awarded are for a one-year service delivery or for the intended three-year contract?

A4)  As stated on page 2 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT), second paragraph:

The total amount of funding available for this Request for Proposal (RFP) is $2,000,000 per year. 

The funding amounts listed in Table 3 (page 8 of the RFP) are the annual funding amounts broken down by Service Category per Service Area.  As stated previously, the County does intend to award a three-year contract; if a three-year contract is awarded, the County will take the annual budget amounts proposed by each awarded bidder (subject to contract negotiations) and award that amount for each year of their contract to determine the total three-year contract award.
Q5) Regarding the SLEB requirements, certain non-profit organizations are exempt.  Can the County clarify how final scoring accounts for non-profits that are exempt?  For example, if a non-profit organization is the lead, prime Bidder but is not an Alameda County certified SLEB, are they not eligible for the 5% bid preference even though they are local vendor in Alameda County?  How does that affect an organization’s final score?  Does this mean that non-profits based in Alameda County would automatically receive the 5% increase in the proposal scoring?
A5) For this RFP, non-profit community based organizations (CBO) that intend to provide services on behalf of the County directly to County clients/residents are exempt from the meeting the SLEB participation requirements.  However, the lead/prime Bidder—whether it is a non-profit CBO, a for-profit corporation, or otherwise—must be an Alameda County certified SLEB at the time of bid submittal in order to receive the 5% bid preference.
Therefore, a non-profit CBO that is an Alameda County certified SLEB would be eligible to receive the 5% bid preference.  However, non-profits CBO’s that claim exemption from the SLEB requirement because they are not an Alameda County certified SLEB would be ineligible for bid preference.

Q6) Can the County clarify if a vendor is a certified SLEB by a city or another agency within the County (e.g., Port of Oakland or City of Oakland), does that qualify for eligibility to receive the 5% bid preference for this RFP?  Or does the Bidder have to go through the application process with Alameda County?  
A6) In order to be eligible for the 5% bid preference for this RFP, Bidders must be certified by the Alameda County Auditor-Controller Agency, SLEB Certification Unit.  
Q7) Does a lead/prime Bidder have to subcontract 20% of its bid/contract to an Alameda County certified SLEB?  Is the 5% bid preference only if the prime bidder is a SLEB? Or is a lead/prime Bidder that is not a SLEB, but subcontracts at least 20% to an Alameda County certified SLEB, eligible to receive the 5% bid preference?
A7) If a lead/prime Bidder is neither an Alameda County certified SLEB nor is it exempt from meeting the SLEB participation requirement, then that lead/prime Bidder is required to subcontract 20% to an Alameda County certified SLEB and would not receive any bid preference for subcontracting.

As state previously, only lead/prime Bidders that are an Alameda County certified SLEB are eligible to receive the 5% bid preference.

Q8) Can the County confirm if a lead/prime Bidder that is exempt from the SLEB requirement, specifically a government agency, is still required to subcontract to a SLEB?
A8) Entities that are exempt from meeting the SLEB participation requirement can be found on the County’s website:  http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm.

Lead/prime Bidders that qualify as an entity that is exempt from the SLEB participation requirement do not have to subcontract to a certified SLEB.  
Q9) Is the contract type “cost reimbursable” or “fee for service”?  Will Contractors be reimbursed on performance outcomes?
A9) As stated on page 16 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES and DELIVERABLES), Item 1:

This will be a performance-based contract with measurements and standards.

Exact payment terms under any contract resulting from this RFP will be negotiated with awarded bidders.  However, because measurable and outcomes are part of this RFP, the County does intend to pay contractors for achievements for milestones and/or deliverables on a per youth basis.  Additional payment structures will have to be discussed during contract negotiations.  

Q10) The reality of this population is that youth will not always finish the program started.  Considering this is a performance-based contract, can the County clarify any attrition or expectations around program completion? 

A10) In regards to attrition, Bidders should address their expected attrition rates from initial referral all the way through program completion and any points in between.  Bidder should also describe how attrition will be mitigated, including any steps that will be taken to re-engage the youth.  This information would also be part of the reporting expectation, i.e., noticing trends with youth or barriers to them completing programs so that they can be addressed early on.
As stated above, exact payment terms will be negotiated with awarded bidders.  The County does intend, however, to pay contractors for achievements based on milestones and/or deliverables on a per youth basis. 

Q11) Page 14 of the RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1, states:

1. Engage in the coordinated entry process in the community.

a. Contractor(s) shall provide services at the following Service Delivery Sites: 

(1) Contractor’s facility;

(a) Contractor shall have a facility or facilities, in Alameda County in the service area(s) for which they are providing services, to adequately conduct all meetings with youth and/or their families.

(2) Client’s home;

(3) Probation offices;

(4) School;  and

(5) Any other sites that support the client and family engagement process. 

Can the County confirm if Bidders are required to provide services to all the sites listed?

A11) Yes.  Bidders are required to be able to provide services at all the Service Delivery Sites.  The County wants Contractors to be flexible with locations to meet with youth (e.g., client’s home, Probation offices, school, etc.).
Q12) Regarding the question above, if a Bidder does not currently have a presence at the Probation office, can the County clarify how that will affect Bidders?  Is it a requirement for Bidders to have a presence at the Probation office?
A12) Bidders are not required to have its own office at the Probation Department offices; but the County is requiring that Bidders be able to work with the Probation Department to service the youth at Probation offices if necessary and appropriate (e.g., meeting with a youth and/or a youth’s Probation Officer).

Q13) Can Bidders apply for more than one category, or propose more than service category in the same area? And if yes, can the County clarify how that is done?  Does the Bidder need to submit more than one proposal, or is it all combined?
A13) Yes.  Bidders can apply for more than one Service Category per Service Area.  Please see revised Budget Form found on pages 8-9 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.

Bidders can check the Service Categories for which they are proposing services along with the corresponding Service Areas to be served.  In addition, for each proposed Service Category per Service Area, Bidders must indicated the estimated number of youth to be served and total billable program budget.

In terms of required submittals, the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet specifies which supporting documents will be required for each Service Category per Service Area being bid on.  For example, on page 13 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, the instructions for the DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROGRAM AND SERVICES states:

Following this page, and for each service category per service area being bid on, Bidder shall provide…

For this requirement, the Bidder must submit a separate DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROGRAM AND SERVICES for each Service Category per Service Area being bid on.  For example, if a Bidder proposes Diversion in Service Area 1, Diversion in Service Area 4, and Mentoring in Service Area 1—then the Bidders must provide a separate and complete DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROGRAM AND SERVICES for Diversion (Service Area 1), Diversion (Service Area 4), and Mentoring (Service Area 1).  The same is true for all other required submittals for which it is stated that a separate submittal is required for each service category per service area bid on.

Please note that each required submittal may have multiple parts/components to it.  All parts/components must be submitted with each separate submittal.
Q14) If a referral has completed a program and is discharged, can the client continue to be served in different Service Category program under this RFP?  For example, can a client can be in a Diversion program and a Life Skills and Support program at the same time?
A14) Yes.  Clients are allowed to both continue into another program once the first one has been completed, as well as be enrolled in more than one program at the same time.  Enrollments into any programs, whether concurrent or subsequent, must still be at the referral and/or approval of ACPD. 
Q15) Is there an assumption of how long a client will be in each of the different service types, i.e. a “length of stay”?
A15) No.  The County makes no assumption of how long a client will or must be any given service category.  The County expects Bidders to provide that information, along with all other programmatic information, as part of their bid response. 
Q16) Can the County provide the numbers of youth currently in custody vs. out of custody, broken out by service area and gender? 
A16) Please see the tables below:

	OUT OF CUSTODY

	SERVICE AREA
	FEMALE
	PERCENT
	MALE
	PERCENT
	TOTAL

	Service Area 1
	71
	24%
	231
	76%
	302

	Service Area 2
	28
	21%
	106
	79%
	134

	Service Area 3-A
	23
	24%
	73
	76%
	96

	Service Area 3-B
	12
	18%
	56
	82%
	68

	Service Area 4
	15
	24%
	47
	76%
	62

	Service Area 5
	9
	17%
	44
	83%
	53

	GRAND TOTAL
	158
	22%
	557
	78%
	715

	
	
	
	
	
	

	IN CUSTODY

	SUPERVISION
	FEMALE
	PERCENT
	MALE
	PERCENT
	TOTAL

	Juvenile Hall
	5
	7%
	67
	93%
	72

	Camp Sweeney
	0
	0%
	17
	100%
	17

	GRAND TOTAL
	5
	7%
	84
	93%
	89


Also, please note that the overall numbers may differ from numbers in the RFP because the data above was taken as of May 14, 2018.
Q17) The County is requesting a Table of Key Personnel (page 11 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet).  If a Bidder is planning to hire new staff for positions, how should that be addressed by Bidders? 
A17) For positions that have not yet been filled, Bidders should include the title of the position in the Table of Key Personnel and put “TBH” in lieu of a name.  Bidders are also encouraged to provide a job description, qualifications, and duties for the position to be hired.  

Q18) Can the County please explain the difference between diversion and restorative justice, because there appears to be some overlap between the two areas? 
The purpose of diversion is to prevent youth from entering further into the criminal justice system, with early intervention services designed to redirect youth.  Diversion programs should collaborate with local law enforcement, schools, and other community based organizations. Restorative justice might be part of that diversion, but it could be for youth that are already in the system or at a higher risk.  Restorative Justice can focus on rehabilitation of youth through reconciliation with victims and the community.  There should be a seamless service, such that if a client starts receiving restorative justice programming while in a locked facility, it will continue once released.
Q19) How would a Contractor determine which service category to place youth? 
A19) The County would like Bidders to provide that information in their bid response.  The County is looking for Bidders to demonstrate their experience, expertise, and innovations in providing programs and services to the target population—including appropriate placement.

Q20) Can the County clarify if there are requirements for serving an entire service area? The Oakland service area is huge, should a bidder be proposing services for the entire city or certain areas within the city?  
A20) It is the intent to service the entirety of any service area listed.
Q21) In the Budget Form provided by the County, Bidders are required to provide the Estimated Number of Youth that Can Be Served and the Total Billable Program Budget.  The latter, as defined on the Budget Form (see footnote1 on page 9 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet) cannot exceed the funding amounts listed in the REVISED Table 3 of the Addendum No. 1.

Additionally, on page 10 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, BUDGET DETAIL & NARRATIVE, Item 1.c., the County is asking Bidders to detail any “matching funds and/or additionally leveraged funding sources.”

How should a Bidder report total number of youth served and overall program funds?  For example, if the funding amount provided by the County would serve 100 youth, but the program can serve 50 additional youth (for a total of 150) because of matching funds, how should that be captured in Bidders’ proposals.
A21) In the Budget Form, the Estimated Number of Youth that Can Be Served should be inclusive of the entire budget for the program (i.e., County funds plus any matching funds and/or any other additional funds).
In the BUDGET DETAIL & NARRATIVE, Bidders will describe and justify the entire budget for the program, including how funds will be used in support of its program and the target population.

Please note that Addendum No. 1 contains a REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet (including a REVISED Budget Form) that must be used when responding to this RFP.
Q22) Regarding matching funds, leveraging funds, and other County resources, are there any guidelines or limits around using multiple ACPD contracts or Alameda County contracts to work together to provide comprehensive services? If so, how should that be addressed? 
A22) It is up to the Bidders to provide the best and most comprehensive program(s) in response to this RFP.  As long as the Bidder is not supplanting funds, the County encourages the use of matching funds, leveraged funds, and other resources (County or otherwise) to supplement its proposed program(s).  Bidders, however, must clearly describe these efforts as part of their bid response. 

Q23) Would an organization get extra points for listing matching funds?
A23) Scoring criterion, including points, can be found on pages 22-26 of the RFP, Section I (EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION COMMITTEE).
Q24) Page 4 of RFP, Section A (INTENT), fourth paragraph, states:

The purpose of the Delinquency Prevention Network (DPN) programs are to implement, enhance, and/or support effective strategies for successful transition to pro social behaviors for at-risk and justice-involved youth (informal and formal probation), ages 8 to 18, including Transition Age Youth (TAY), ages 18 to 21 (with active probation involvement or Non-Minor Dependents), non-probation involved and truant youth.

Are bidders restricted to only working with informal and formal probation youth, or can it be any at-risk youth in the community?

A24) It can be any at-risk youth in the community.
Q25) Page 15 of RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 2.d., states:
Services and programs specifically structured to prevent formal entry into the juvenile justice system. Programs are encouraged to develop strategic partnerships in an effort to better meet the intervention and treatment needs of youth. Programs are responsible for building relationships with school districts to develop site-specific alternatives to suspension programming.

Is it true that the County prefers alternatives to suspension programming, and therefore not as interested in diversion through the police department?
A25) No.  That is not correct. 

Q26) Page 16 of RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 4.b., the last paragraph states:
Contractors shall not use DPN funds to serve the same population of youth and services covered under another funding source (e.g., no supplanting of funds).

If a Contractor is working with youth that are involved in several different programs in different ways, how would the numbers be counted to meet specific requirements as well as utilize other funding?  How will a Contractor articulate that information without going against the above statement? The blended funding for providing service is the issue, not supplanting.

A26) The numbers are not necessarily the issue.  If youth are enrolled in program services connected to this RFP, then the youth should be included in the reports along with applicable performance measures and outcomes.

The statement above (i.e., no supplanting of funds) is intended to ensure that DPN funds are not used for services or activities provided to a youth that have already been covered, or should be covered, under an existing funding source.  For example, if a youth is given an assessment that is covered under a non-DPN program, the County does not expect to be billed for that exact same assessment under this program.  Likewise, if a Bidder is awarded multiple Service Categories under this RFP, the County does not expect to be billed multiple times for the one assessment that is used to place a youth in multiple programs.  

In addition, as noted on page 17 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Fiscal Management Capacity & Sustainability, Item 3, Bidders must:

Describe how oversight of funds will be ensured to support the program, and detail how funds will not be used to supplant.
Q27) Page 16 of RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 4.c., states:
Service Coordination Plan:  Contractor shall service youth referred by the following sources:  ACPD, Law Enforcement, School, Family, Self, or Community Referral.  This includes youth referred to the ACPD through Notice to Appear (NTA); on formal or informal probation; or court ordered informal probation.  Other referrals may come from District Attorney, Public Defender, or the Juvenile Court and Law Enforcement Agencies in Alameda County.
If the referral is not coming specifically from ACPD, how would a Contractor report that back to ACPD for tracking purposes?  What would that process look like?

A27) Pages 17-18 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES and DELIVERABLES), Item 2, describes the reporting requirements under this RFP.  In particular, Item 2.a.(3) states that each monthly report should include data for the previous month of service and shall include:
Date of birth, address, client descriptive information (referral source, gender, ethnicity etc.)

Q28) Page 17 of RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES and DELIVERABLES), Item 1.c.(1), states:
c.
Are participants better off?

(1)
Within six months of program completion, 75% of participating youth will not be arrested or reoffend, to be confirmed with Probation data. 

If a Contractor has youth that do not fit within the parameters of arrested or reoffend, how will the County judge that performance measure and the Contractor’s ability to do the overall work?  For example, if a Contractor services an at-risk youth that has not committed a crime, but has the risk to get involved in activities that might lead to arrest, how should that youth be accounted for and serviced?
A28) The youth in the example above should be accounted for and reported under Item 1.c.(2) of the same section:

(2)
75% of youth should experience a reduction of identified risk behaviors, based upon pre-/post-test using a standardized Risk, Needs and Responsivity assessment instrument (to be determined by ACPD).

Youth do not have to fit in every category; youth can be placed where it makes sense.
Q29) Page 17 of RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES and DELIVERABLES), Item 1.b.(4) states:
80% of the youth will receive the service within one week of referral.
Can the County define what “service” is being referenced?  For example:  If the service referenced is intake, then that would be possible; however, if the County is implying that youth have be enrolled into the program within a week of referral, then that may be a lot less likely.
A29) The County requires that Contractors to have at least initial contact, and preferably an assessment or scheduled assessment, within one week of referral.  

Q30) Page 31 of RFP, Section O (AWARD), Item 5, states:
The County reserves the right to award to a single or multiple Contractors.

Can the County confirm how many bidders will be awarded for each Service Category per Service Area?  Is it the intent of the County to make one award for each Service Category per Service Area?

A30) As state on page 21 of the RFP, Section I (EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION COMMITTEE):  

In addition to the highest ranked bidder in each service category per service area, the County can assign additional vendors (in a service category per service area)—based on ranking—to cover the needs and population of a service area.      

The County reserves its right to decline to award contracts, or any part thereof, under this RFP for any reason.  In the event that multiple awardees are assigned within a specific service category per service area, the County reserves it right to adjust total award amounts in order to stay within the “total funding” amounts listed in Table 3 under Section B (SCOPE and BACKGROUND). 

In addition, if there are any gaps in service categories and/or services areas, the County reserve its right to select from bidders that were evaluated in order to cover such gaps.
Q31) Page 10 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, BUDGET DETAIL & NARRATIVE, Item 1.a.(1) states that Bidders must provide:
1.
Annualized, line-item operating budget detailing the work to be performed and all associated costs, including but not limited to the following:

a.
Fixed Costs (not to exceed 25% of the cost billable to the County)

(1)
Fixed Costs shall include Indirect Costs (not to exceed 10% of the total budget), as well as any requests for advanced funding to start, implement, or supplement its program.

In this RFP, the fixed costs language only includes indirect costs and advanced funding, but not the broader description.  Whereas in other Probation-related bids (e.g., JJCPA), fixed cost included indirect costs, advance funding, and any other fixed cost necessary as a baseline to provide the services—as opposed to program costs which would be scalable based on youth served.  Can the County confirm which description remains correct?

A31) Each RFP may define terms differently due to the specific nature of each project.  As an example, the “scalable based on youth served” description may have been intended for a project in which all youth are referred to the program by ACPD—which is not necessarily the case for this RFP (for which there are multiple points of entry).

Bidders should use the definitions and requirements as set forth in the RFP being bid on.  For this RFP, fixed costs shall be inclusive of indirect costs and advanced funding—but additional fixed costs can also be included.  Regardless, fixed costs in total cannot exceed 25% of the cost billable to the County.

Q32) Page 13 of Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, the Administrative Requirements Narrative has a limit of two (2) pages.  Can the County clarify the level of detail Bidders are to provide? 
A32) Bidders are expected to describe and provide as much detail as best they can while staying within the allotted page limit.
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